
 
 

 



 



Lake Land College 
Board of Trustees 

District No. 517 

Regular Meeting No. 614 

Monday, February 12, 2018, 6:00 p.m.  

Webb Hall 081, Mattoon  

Agenda 

I. Routine. 

 

A. Call to Order. 

 

B. Roll Call. 

 

C. Consent Item.  
(Any one member may remove an item from the consent item list simply by 

requesting the Chair to do so.  Items removed will be discussed and voted 

immediately following passage of the consent item.) 

 

1. Approval of Minutes of January 8, 2018, Regular Meeting. (Board Book 

pages 6-17).   

2. Approval of Agenda of February 12, 2018, Board of Trustees Meeting. 
3. Bills for Payment and Travel Expenses.  

This information will be presented by College administration for approval 

with full assurance by management it has been prepared in good faith to 

follow all applicable laws and board policy. For summary and details of 

bills refer to: 

http://www.lakeland.cc.il.us/col/board_minutes/download.cfm 

4. Destruction of Tape Recording of August 8, 2016, Closed Session.  

 

 

II. Hearing of Citizens, Faculty and Staff. 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 3

http://www.lakeland.cc.il.us/col/board_minutes/download.cfm


Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Agenda – February 12, 2018 
Page 2 
 

III. Committee Reports.  

 

A. ICCTA/Legislative   Mr. Mike Sullivan 

Ms. Ann Deters 

B. Resource & Development  Ms. Doris Reynolds 

C. Finance    Ms. Ann Deters 

D. Buildings & Site   Mr. Bruce Owen 

E. Student Report   Mr. Charles Meaker 

F. President’s Report   Dr. Josh Bullock 

 

IV. Business Items. 

 

A. Non-Action Items. 

  Board 
Book Page 
Number(s) 

1.   Faculty Focus on Advancing Student Success.   
2.   Preparations for Nov. 2018 Higher Learning Commission 

Comprehensive Evaluation Site Visit.  
 

3.   Spring 2018 Tenth Day Enrollment Summary.  
4.   Calendar of Events. 18-20 
5.   Correspondence. 

 
21 

 

B. Action Items. 

  Board Book 
Page 

Number(s) 
1.   Approval of Proposed Revisions to Eight Board Policies 

Including:  
a. 05.04.08 – Bereavement Leave. 
b. 05.04.09 – Leave for Jury Duty or Court 

Attendance.  
c. 05.04.13 – Military Leave. 
d. 05.04.14 – General Leave of Absence without Pay.  
e. 05.14.15 – Absence Due to Inclement Weather. 
f. 05.04.16 – Sabbatical Leave for Administrators. 

22-35 

Board Book Page 4



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Agenda – February 12, 2018 
Page 3 
 

g. 05.04.18 – Discipline and Suspension, Demotion or 
Dismissal for Cause. 

h. 05.04.21 – Vacations. 
2.   Approval of Planned Retirement Requests. 36 
3.   Acceptance of Reporting of December 2017 Financial 

Statements. 
37-49 

4.   Approval of Recipient of Distinguished Service Award.  50-51 
5.   Approval of Recipient of Alumnus Achievement Award.  52 
6.   Approval of Retiree Wall of Fame Inductees.  53 
7.   Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement with Joliet 

Junior College Dist. No. 525 for Educational Services with 
IDOC.   

54-56 

8.   Approval of Bid for Catalog Printing.  57-58 
9.   Declaration of Equipment as Surplus.  59 
10.   Acceptance of CTE Improvement Grant. 60 
11.   Approval of Remodel and Expansion of Child Care Lab for 

Administration.  
61-62 

12.   Accept Proposal for Architectural and Engineering 
Services for Luther Student Center Renovation and 
Expansion Project. 

63-73 

13.   Approval of Resolution No. 0218-008 Expressing Official 
Intent regarding Certain Capital Expenditures to be 
Reimbursed from Proceeds of an Obligation to be Issued 
by the District. 

74-82 

14.   Approval of General Leave of Absence Without Pay 
Request by a Career Technology Instructor at 
Southwestern Illinois Correctional Center.    

 

15.   Approval of Human Resources Report. 83-86 
 

C. Other Business. 

 

 

D. Adjournment. 

Board Book Page 5



Lake Land College 
Board of Trustees 

District No. 517 

 
Regular Board Meeting No. 613 

Webb Hall, Room 081, Mattoon, IL 
January 8, 2018 

 
Minutes   

 
Call to Order. 
 
Chair Storm called the January 8, 2018, regular meeting of the Lake Land College Board of 
Trustees to order at 6:00 p.m. in Webb Hall, room 081, Mattoon.  
 
Roll Call. 

 
Trustees Physically Present: Mr. Gary Cadwell; Ms. Ann Deters, Secretary; Mr. Bruce Owen; 
Ms. Doris Reynolds, Vice Chair; Mr. David Storm, Chair; and Mr. Charles Meaker, Student 
Trustee. 

 
Trustees Absent: Ms. Meg Steward and Mr. Mike Sullivan. 

 
Others Present: Dr. Jonathan Bullock, President; Mr. Jon Althaus, Vice President for 
Academic Services; Mr. Bryan Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services; Ms. Jean Anne 
Grunloh, Senior Executive to the President; Dr. Jim Hull, Vice President for Workforce 
Solutions and Community Education; Dr. Tina Stovall, Vice President for Student Services; 
and members of the staff, community and media.    
 
Approval of Consent Items.  
 
Trustee Owen moved and Trustee Reynolds seconded to approve the following consent items:  
   

1. Approval of Minutes of December 11, 2017, Regular Meeting.  
2. Approval of Minutes of December 11, 2017, Closed Session. 
3. Approval of Agenda of January 8, 2018, Board of Trustees Meeting. 
4. Bills for Payment and Travel Expenses.  

This information was presented by College administration for approval with full 
assurance by management they were prepared in good faith to follow all applicable 
laws and Board policy. Summary and bills include: 

Education Fund $        235,996.68 

Board Book Page 6



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – January 8, 2018 
Page 2 of 12
 

Building Fund $          12,464.50 

Site & Construction Fund $                        -  

Bond & Interest Fund $                        - 

Auxiliary Services Fund $        141,675.76 

Restricted Purposes Fund $        176,306.63 

Working Cash Fund $                        - 

Audit Fund $                        - 

Liability Insurance Fund $                   472.46 

Student Accts Receivables $          24,623.83 

Total $        591,539.86 

 
For details of bills refer to:                                            
http://www.lakeland.cc.il.us/col/board_minutes/download.cfm 
 

5. Destruction of Tape Recording of July 11, 2016, Closed Session. 
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, and Storm. No: None.  
Absent: Trustees Steward and Sullivan. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Hearing of Citizens, Faculty, and Staff.  
 
There were no public comments.  
 
Committee Reports. 
 
ICCTA/Legislative. 
 
Trustee Deters said she and Trustee Sullivan had no report at this time.  
 
Resource & Development. 
 
Trustee Reynolds, Committee Chair, said the Committee had not met since the last regular 
Board meeting and she had no report at this time. She also said the committee had previously 
reviewed and considered items that will appear later in the agenda and she will comment on 
these issues as they are discussed.  
 
Finance. 
 
Trustee Deters, Committee Chair, said the Committee had not met since the last regular Board 
meeting and she had no report at this time. 
 

Board Book Page 7

http://www.lakeland.cc.il.us/col/board_minutes/download.cfm


Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – January 8, 2018 
Page 3 of 12
 

Buildings & Site. 
 
Trustee Owen, Committee Chair, said the Committee had not met since the last regular Board 
meeting and he had no report at this time.  
 
Student Report. 
 
Student Trustee Meaker highlighted events related to the start of the Spring 2018 semester. 
He also shared information on his initiative, the “Duck Blind,” to increase student support for 
athletic events held on campus.   
 
President’s Report. 
 
Dr. Bullock said:  

 The College has received a total of $4,268,146 in credit hour reimbursement for Fund 1 
and Corrections through December.  This represents 76.9 percent of the total budgeted 
credit hour reimbursement revenue for FY2018.   

 Through December, the College has received $2,793,628 in equalization payments from 
the state, which represents 59.7 percent of the total amount we anticipate receiving for 
FY2018. 

 Ms. Tisha Goad, nursing instructor, has been awarded a Nurse Educator Fellowship by the 
Illinois Department of Higher Education.  The purpose of the Nurse Educator Fellowship 
Program is to ensure the retention of well-qualified nursing faculty at institutions of higher 
learning that award degrees in nursing.  The awards are to be used to promote professional 
development by supplementing the salaries of the nursing faculty selected. Congratulations 
to Ms. Goad! 

 A Cardinal Caravan event will be held at the Field House on Sunday, January 14th, 
beginning at noon.  

 
Business Items. 
 
Non-action Items. 
 
Quarterly Investment Report.   
 
Representatives from Wells Fargo Advisors presented on the Quarterly Investment Report for 
the period ending December 31, 2017.  
 
Proposed Revisions to Eight Board Policies Including:  
 

a. 05.04.08 – Bereavement Leave. 
b. 05.04.09 – Leave for Jury Duty or Court Attendance.  
c. 05.04.13 – Military Leave. 
d. 05.04.14 – General Leave of Absence without Pay.  
e. 05.14.15 – Absence Due to Inclement Weather. 

Board Book Page 8



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – January 8, 2018 
Page 4 of 12
 

f. 05.04.16 – Sabbatical Leave for Administrators. 
g. 05.04.18 – Discipline and Suspension, Demotion or Dismissal for Cause. 
h. 05.04.21 – Vacations.  

 
Trustees reviewed details of proposed revisions to each of the above-referenced policies. Mr. 
Bryan Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services, noted the need for each of these 
policies to reference Department of Juvenile Justice contracts where applicable since the 
College now provides educational services at youth centers in addition to facilities with the 
Illinois Department of Corrections.  
 
Recommended revisions were submitted as first reading and will be brought to the Board for 
action during the February 2018 regular Board meeting.  
 
Calendar of Events. 
 
Trustees received a calendar of upcoming events.  
 
Correspondence.  
 
Trustees reviewed two items of correspondence. 
 
Action Items. 
 
Approval of Proposed Revisions to 21 Board Policies in Sections 9, 10 and 11 from 
Policy Manual Annual Review.  
 
Trustees learned that proposed revisions of 21 policies in sections 9, 10 and 11 from the Policy 
Manual Annual Review process were presented to the Board during the December 2017 
regular Board meeting as first reading for initial consideration and that the administration has 
received no requests for additional changes since that time. 
 
Trustee Reynolds, Resource and Development Committee Chair, said the Committee 
reviewed all recommended revisions in December 2017 and the Committee’s consensus was 
to recommend to the Board approval of the revisions as presented.  
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Deters seconded to approve as presented proposed 
revisions to 21 policies in sections 9, 10, and 11 of the Board Policy Manual.  
 
Trustee Deters asked for clarification on procedures versus policy related to petty cash funds 
(Board Policy 10.38). Mr. Gleckler clarified that the revisions to Policy 10.38 clarify the 
requirement for annual approval of the need/existence for any petty cash funds while the 
College’s procedures are to reconcile any petty cash fund accounts on a monthly basis.   
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, and Storm. No: None.  

Board Book Page 9



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – January 8, 2018 
Page 5 of 12
 

Absent: Trustees Steward and Sullivan. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Resolution No. 0118-007 to Adopt Proposed Changes to Board Policy 
11.04.01 – Prohibition of Sexual Discrimination, Harassment, and Misconduct. 
 
Trustees reviewed the above-referenced Resolution and related details for proposed revisions 
to Board Policy 11.04.01. Mr. Gleckler said adoption of recommended revisions is required by 
Public Act 100-0554 which was signed into law by Illinois Governor Bruce Rauner last 
November. He said this Act requires local governmental entities to adopt a sexual harassment 
policy by ordinance or resolution on or before January 15, 2018. Due to timing issues, it was 
requested that the Board approve revisions and adopt the Resolution as both a first and 
second reading.  
 
Trustee Deters moved and Trustee Reynolds seconded to approve Resolution No. 0018-007 
to adopt changes to Board Policy 11.04.01 – Sexual Harassment and Sex Discrimination. A full 
and complete copy of Resolution No. 0018-007 is attached to and part of these minutes. 
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, and Storm. No: None.  
Absent: Trustees Steward and Sullivan. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Faculty Seniority Listing.   
 
Mr. Jon Althaus, Vice President for Academic Services, presented on the proposed Faculty 
Seniority Listing effective January 8, 2018. He said that Chapter 22 of the Illinois Revised 
Statutes, paragraph 103B-5, requires each community college district to establish a faculty 
seniority list no later than February 1 of each year and that this list must then be distributed to 
appropriate employee representatives. He said that during the most recent contract 
negotiations, the faculty and administration agreed to add the assignments that each faculty 
members is qualified to provide. He also said this additional information will continue to be 
updated throughout year to add qualifications of faculty members as they occur. Trustees 
reviewed details of the proposed Faculty Seniority Listing. 
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Owen seconded to approve the Faculty Seniority Listing 
as presented effective January 8, 2018.  
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, and Storm. No: None.  
Absent: Trustees Steward and Sullivan. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Acceptance of Reporting of November 2017 Financial Statements. 

Board Book Page 10



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – January 8, 2018 
Page 6 of 12
 

 
Trustees reviewed the November 2017 Financial Statements and a memorandum from Mr. 
Gleckler highlighting variances for the statements. This information included a summary of all 
operational expenditures (Funds 1 and 2) year to date as compared to budgeted amounts, a 
salary and benefits summary. Trustees also heard a brief presentation from Mr. Gleckler 
regarding the Financial Statements and significant variances.  
 
Trustee Deters moved and Trustee Reynolds seconded to approve the November 2017 
Financial Statements as presented.  
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, and Storm. No: None.  
Absent: Trustees Steward and Sullivan. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of 2018 Schedule of Board of Trustees Meetings.  
 
Trustees reviewed the proposed schedule of regular Board meetings to be held in 2018. Dr. 
Bullock said Board meetings have traditionally been held on the second Monday of each 
month. However, the administration is recommending the July 2018 regular Board meeting be 
held on the third Monday of the month to avoid the need for scheduling a special meeting to 
fulfill the 30-day resting period requirement from presentation of the FY 2019 Budget in June to 
approval by the Board in July.   
 
Trustee Cadwell moved and Trustee Owen seconded to as presented the 2018 Schedule of 
Board of Trustees Meetings. 
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, and Storm. No: None.  
Absent: Trustees Steward and Sullivan. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of MOU with the Paraprofessional Union regarding Position Changes.  
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Gleckler to approve a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) with the Lake Land College Paraprofessionals Union, Local 6028, that 
adds the Administrative Assistant to College Advancement to the Paraprofessionals Union and 
excludes the Payroll Specialist position from the Union upon the retirement of the current 
incumbent, Ms. Barbara Arthur. Trustees reviewed the proposed MOU.   
 
Trustee Owen moved and Trustee Deters seconded to approve as presented the MOU with 
the Lake Land College Paraprofessional Union, Local 6028, regarding the addition of the 
Administrative Assistant to College Advancement position to become a level two position as 

Board Book Page 11



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – January 8, 2018 
Page 7 of 12
 

part of this union and exclude the Payroll Specialist position upon retirement of the current 
employee in this position. 
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, and Storm. No: None.  
Absent: Trustees Steward and Sullivan. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of MOU with the Paraprofessional Union regarding Testing Requirements.  
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Gleckler to approve a proposed MOU with the 
Paraprofessionals Union to clarify the testing language in the collective bargaining agreement. 
Trustees reviewed the proposed MOU.   
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Owen seconded to approve as presented the MOU with 
the Lake Land College Paraprofessional Union, Local 6028, regarding testing requirements.   
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, and Storm. No: None.  
Absent: Trustees Steward and Sullivan. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Acceptance of the FY18 Cooperative Work Study Grant. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Althaus for the Board to accept from the Illinois 
Board of Higher Education a Fiscal Year 2018 Illinois Cooperative Work Study (ICWS) grant in 
the amount of $34,446.84. Trustees learned eleven area employers have committed their 
participation with Lake Land with this grant for 2018, each of these participating employers will 
pay 50 percent of students’ wages, and students will be required to complete three learning 
objectives and to research Illinois job opportunities in their career field.   
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Cadwell seconded to accept as presented the FY 2018 

Illinois Cooperative Work Study (ICWS) grant in the amount of $34,446.84 from the Illinois 

Board of Higher Education.        

There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, and Storm. No: None.  
Absent: Trustees Steward and Sullivan. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
 
 

Board Book Page 12



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – January 8, 2018 
Page 8 of 12
 

Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement with Illinois Eastern Community Colleges 
Dist. No. 529 for Educational Services with IDOC.  
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Bullock for the Board to approve the above-
referenced Agreement.  Dr. Bullock said that the Board has already approved the College’s 
contract with Illinois Department of Corrections (IDOC) for Lake Land to provide educational 
services at two IDOC correctional facilities located in College District No. 529 and that 
approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement will formalize the prior verbal agreement 
between Lake Land College and College District No. 529.  
 
Trustee Owen moved and Trustee Deters seconded to approve as presented the 
Intergovernmental Agreement with Illinois Eastern Community Colleges District No. 529 for 
Lake Land College to provide educational services at two Illinois Department of Corrections 
facilities located in District No. 529.   
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, and Storm. No: None.  
Absent: Trustees Steward and Sullivan. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Marketing Consultant.  
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Tina Stovall, Vice President for Student Services, 
for the Board to approve a contract with Sanger & Eby of Cincinnati, Ohio, in the amount of 
$35,000 to conduct the College’s Phase II Branding and Marketing Initiative as approved in the 
FY18 Budget. Dr. Stovall said the marketing consultant’s work will be completed from January 
15, 2018, through March 15, 2018, and will include a professional audit and strategy 
recommendations specifically focused on using our strong brand identity in future marketing 
initiatives, including the development of a comprehensive five-year marketing plan.  
 
Trustee Owen moved and Trustee Reynolds seconded to approve as presented the marketing 
consultant contract with Sanger & Eby of Cincinnati, Ohio, in the amount of $35,000 for Phase 
II of the College’s marketing and branding initiative to be conducted from January 15, 2018 
through March 15, 2018.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, and Storm. No: None.  
Absent: Trustees Steward and Sullivan. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Approval of Human Resources Report.   
 
Trustees reviewed the proposed Human Resources Report. 
 

Board Book Page 13



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – January 8, 2018 
Page 9 of 12
 

Trustee Cadwell motioned and Trustee Reynolds seconded to approve the following Human 
Resources Report: 
 
The following employee has a family medical eligible event 
 
 Laumbattus, Doug FMLA 11/09/17-12/05/17 
 Overstreet, Desiree FMLA (intermittent) 11/10/17-02/18/18 
 Shoot, James FMLA 11/12/17-05/12/18 
 
Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are recommended for additional appointments 
      Position Effective Date 
Part-time 
    Homann, Mary CNA Evaluator 10/30/2017 
    Primary Position is Allied Health BNA Adj Faculty                
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor-Disability Services - Student 01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is International Stu Ambassador             
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor-Student Community Education 01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is International Stu Ambassador             
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor - Student Learning Assistance Center 01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is International Stu Ambassador             
    Jobe, Bryan Tutor-Associates-Disability Services 12/18/2018 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Associate-Lrng Asst              
    Jobe, Bryan Tutor - Associate Community Education 12/18/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Associate-Lrng Asst              
    Kimball, Linda CNA Evaluator 10/30/2017 
    Primary Position is Allied Health BNA Cln Instr               
    Lytle, Brianna Adjunct Faculty Math and Science  01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is Tutor-Bachelor's-LRC                     
    Moluba Ebali, Geonel Bookstore Rush Worker 12/19/2017 
    Primary Position is International Stu Ambassador             
    Schuring, Tyler Basketball Scorers/Timers 12/06/2017 
    Primary Position is Fitness Center Specialist                
    Smithenry, Stacey Tutor-Disability Services - Student 10/15/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst Ctr             
    Smithenry, Stacey Tutor-Student Community Education 10/15/2017 
   Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst Ctr   
     
Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Shuff, Kara Pathways Substitute Instructor 12/15/2017 
    Primary Position is Pathways Classroom Assistant             
    Smithenry, Stacey Tutor-Student Carl Perkins 10/15/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst Ctr            
  
End Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are ending their additional appointment 

Board Book Page 14



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – January 8, 2018 
Page 10 of 12
 

     Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
    Uphoff, Beulah  BNA clinical instructor (PT) 12/17/2017 
 
Position Recommendations 

The following positions have been recommended by the Lake Land College 
President’s cabinet 
 
Position 
Administrative Assistant to College Advancement   01/01/2018 
Support staff to Paraprofessional class 
  
Athletic Trainer – 12 month to 10 month position  
 01/01/2018 

 New Hire-Employees 
  The following employees are recommended for hire 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    Cloe, Melvin Dual Credit Instructor 12/12/2017 
 
Full-time 
 Donaldson, Lynne Student Services Specialist III 01/09/2018 
 Houser, Sydney Administrative Asst to Allied Health-Dental 02/01/2018 
 
Full-time - Grant Funded 
 Corda, Jamie Perkins Specialist 01/09/2018 
 Collins, Kevin Correctional Custodian Instr-Shawnee CC 01/02/2018 
 Flowers, Timothy Horticulture Instructor-Vandalia CC 01/02/2018 
 Herendeen, Sierra Administrative Assistant to Juvenile Justice 01/02/2018 
  Programs-WDC 
    Parish, Wesley Correctional Custodian Instr-IYC Harrisburg 01/02/2018 
 Shales, Louis Correctional Custodian Instructor-Vienna CC 01/02/2018 
 Spence, Latrina Correctional Cosmetology Instr-Vienna CC 01/02/2018 
 Copher, Julie Correctional Office Assistant – Vienna CC 01/02/2018 
 
Part-time 
    Ames, Lilly Newspaper Editor - Student Newspaper 11/06/2017 
    Duncan, Carah Marketing and Public Relations Intern 01/08/2018 
    Hale, Aaron Dual Credit Coordinator 12/13/2017 
    Kilzer, Barbara Adjunct Faculty Allied Health  01/08/2018 
    Longcor, Elizabeth Bookstore Rush Worker 12/11/2017 
    Pals, Justin Adjunct Faculty Math and Science  01/08/2018 
    Peoples, Tyrese Newspaper Editor - Student Newspaper 10/17/2017 
    Smithenry, Stacey Tutor - Student Learning Assistance Ctr 10/15/2017 
    Swann, Jodi Adjunct Faculty Social Science  01/08/2018 
 

Board Book Page 15



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – January 8, 2018 
Page 11 of 12
 

Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Huston, Ruby Adult Education Instructor 12/06/2017 
 
College Work Study 
    McWhorter, Destiny College Work Study - Early Childhood Edu 11/01/2017 
  
Terminations/Resignations 
  The following employees are terminating employment 
      Position Effective Date 
Part-time 
    Aitken, James Adj Faculty Technology 12/05/2017 
    Bingham, Thomas Adj Faculty Technology 12/05/2017 
    Bolin, Marletta Allied Health BNA Cln Instr 12/17/2017 
    Brown, Charles Adj Faculty Technology 12/05/2017 
    Darimont, Lynn Adj Reading Instructor 12/17/2017 
    Frainey, James Adj Doc College Funded Instr 12/01/2017 
    Lambert, Harry IDOC CPR Instructor 12/07/2017 
    Miller, Danelle Adj Faculty Math/Science 12/17/2017 
    Patel, Palak Tutor - Student Lrng Asst Ctr 12/08/2017 
    Ray, Zoe Tutor - Student Lrng Asst Ctr 12/13/2017 
    Sudkamp, Dustin Graphic Designer Pre-Flight 11/29/2017 
    Tucker, Hannah Library Assistant 11/22/2017 
    Westbrooks, Lisa Adj Doc College Funded Instr 12/01/2017 
  
Transfers/Promotions 
  The following employee is recommended for a change in position 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
 Mueller, Rebecca Library Circulation Assistant  01/09/2018 
     Transferring from:  Library Circulation Assistant - PT 
  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes:  Trustees Cadwell, Deters, Owen, Reynolds, and Storm. No: None.  
Absent: Trustees Steward and Sullivan. Student Advisory Vote: Meaker voted yes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Other Business. (Non-action) 
 
There was no additional discussion.  
 
Adjournment. 
 
Student Trustee Meaker moved and Trustee Owen seconded to adjourn the January 8, 2018, 
meeting of the Lake Land College Board of Trustees at 6:35 p.m.   

Board Book Page 16



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – January 8, 2018 
Page 12 of 12
 

Motion carried with unanimous voice vote approval. 
 
 
Approved by: 
 
________________________                      __________________________ 
Mr. Dave Storm, Board Chair     Ms. Ann Deters Board Secretary

*Note – See Board of Trustees web page for any referenced attachments to these minutes.   
https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/  

Board Book Page 17

https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/


______________ 
Revised  2/5/18 

 

 

 

Calendar of Events 
 
Monday, February 12, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, February 22, 2018 6 p.m. - Ag Banquet – Field House 
 
Thursday, March 8, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, March 12, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Wednesday, March 21, 2018 Employee Recognition Event 
 2:00 p.m. Laker Point 
 2:30 p.m. Theater 
 
Thursday, April 5, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, April 9, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, April 12, 2018 4 – 5 p.m. Lake Land College Foundation Scholarship Reception 
 Field House 

5:30 p.m. Lake Land College Foundation Donor Recognition 
Reception at the Mattoon Golf & Country Club 
 

Friday, April 13, 2018                           Principals, Deans and Counselors Meeting 
                                                             8:30 a.m. – 1:30 p.m. Webb 081 

Wednesday, April 25, 2018                  Student Recognition Banquet 
                                                             6:00 p.m. Field House 
 
Sunday, April 29, 2018 Laker Athletic Gala 
 Field House 
 More details to come 
 
Friday, May 4, 2018 Johnson Music Festival 
 Field House 
 More details to come 
 
Thursday, May 10, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
 

Board Book Page 18



______________ 
Revised  2/5/18 

 

 

 

 
Friday, May 11, 2018 51st Annual Lake Land College Commencement Ceremony 
 5:30 p.m. Dinner in the West Building Atrium 
 7:30 p.m. Commencement Ceremony Field House  
 
Monday, May 14, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Friday, May 18, 2018  11:30 a.m. Lake Land College Foundation Golf Classic 
 Meadowview Golf Course 
 
Thursday, June 7, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, June 11, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, July 12, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, July 16, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
(Third Monday of Month) 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, August 9, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, August 13, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, September 6, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, September 10, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, October 4, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, October 8, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 19



______________ 
Revised  2/5/18 

 

 

 

 
Thursday, November 8, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, November 12, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
Thursday, December 6, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting  
 1 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 2 p.m. – Webb Hall 081 
 
Monday, December 10, 2018 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Webb 081 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Webb 081 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 20



Board Book Page 21



 
 
 

Memo 

 
To:  Dr. Josh Bullock, President 
 
From:  Bryan Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services 
 
Date:  December 18, 2017 
 
Re:  Human Resource Section Policy Updates  

  
 
In the annual review of Board Policies pertaining to Section 5, College Personnel, there were 
several policies that didn’t get updated to reflect the fact that the College now also contracts 
with the Illinois Department of Juvenile Justice as well as the Department of Corrections.  
Multiple policies have language that allow the contract language to prevail when a conflict with 
Board Policy may arise.   
 
Board Policies 05.04.08, 05.04.09, 05.04.13, 05.04.14, 05.04.15, 05.04.16, 05.04.18 and 
05.04.21 all need the Department of Juvenile Justice language added.  The language in each 
policy will resemble the following: For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth 
centers, when there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of Juvenile 
Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 
 
I recommend the Board of Trustees approve updates to Board Policies 05.04.08, 05.04.09, 
05.04.13, 05.04.14, 05.04.15, 05.04.16, 05.04.18 and 05.04.21 to add the Department of 
Juvenile Justice to the policy language as appropriate.   

 

Board Book Page 22



 
05.04.08 

 
Bereavement Leave 

 
Each full-time employee will, in the event of a death in the immediate 
family, be granted a maximum of five (5) working days of bereavement leave 
per occurrence with full pay.  Immediate family is defined as the spouse, 
civil union partner, child, step-child, parent, step-parent, grandchild, brother, 
or sister of the employee. 
 
 
Bereavement leave with pay will be granted for a maximum of three (3) 
working days in the event of the death of mother-in-law, father-in-law, son- in-
law, daughter-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, grandparents, aunts, 
uncles, or foster parents. 
 
 
Bereavement leave must be taken within the first five (5) working days of the 
death of an immediate family member and within the first three (3) working 
days of the death of all other family members, but need not be taken 
consecutively.  Bereavement leave for any circumstances beyond those 
specifically mentioned may be authorized by the employee’s vice president. 
 
 
Bereavement leave days granted will not be accumulative from year to year, 
nor chargeable against any other paid employee leave. 
 
 
If circumstances require, days needed in addition to the five- and three-day 
allotments may be charged to personal and/or sick leave balances. 
 
Per the Child Bereavement Leave Act, employees are entitled to a maximum 
of ten (10) working days of unpaid leave for bereavement due to the death of 
a child or stepchild.  The employee must take any unpaid leave allowed under 
the Act within 60 days after they are notified of the death of a child. 
 
 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth center centers, when 
there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of Juvenile 
Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 
 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised November 11, 2002 
Revised June 13, 2011 
Revised June 9, 2014 
Revised February 13, 2017 
Revised 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 23



05.04.09 

 

 

Leave for Jury Duty or Court Attendance 
 
 
 
Employees who are summoned to court to perform jury duty shall be 
granted leave with pay.  Employees who are subpoenaed to attend court or 
board hearings to testify in matters in which they have no personal or 
monetary interest shall be granted leave with pay.  Any remuneration 
received for jury duty or for testifying before a court or a board shall be 
refunded to the college, excluding mileage.  Employees who attend court 
as parties to lawsuits or who have a personal or monetary interest therein 
will be granted leave without pay.  In any case, leave for jury duty shall not 
be charged to sick leave.  Employees are expected to report to their work 
assignment during a normal work day when their presence is not required 
in the court. 
 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, when 
there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of Juvenile 
Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised July 14, 2003 
Revised 
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 24



05.04.13 
 
 

Military Leave 
 
An employee who is drafted into military service or who volunteers for 
service in lieu of being drafted will be granted a leave of absence for the 
duration of the required military service. 
 
A person on military leave shall declare in writing to their Supervisor and 
the President a minimum of thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the 
leave his intentions to return to work.  All provisions of Public Law 87-291, 
Reemployment Rights, paragraph 22, shall apply. 
 
Upon expiration of the leave, the employee is eligible to apply to the State 
Universities Retirement System for experience credit in the pension 
system. 
 
The College will follow the provisions set forth in the Military Leave of 
Absence Act.1 
 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, when 
there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of 
Juvenile Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1   5 ILCS 325/1 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised July 14, 2003 
Revised December 11, 2017 
 
 
Page 1 of 1 

                                                 

Board Book Page 25



05.04.14 
 
 

General Leave of Absence without Pay 
 
 
A special leave of absence without pay and without loss of seniority, 
status, appointment or accrued benefits may be approved by the Board 
of Trustees.  In order for a special leave to be considered by the Board, 
the individual must have prior approval by the appropriate supervisor and 
administrator and the president of the College.  Requests must be 
submitted at least two weeks prior to the requested leave.  Unusual 
hardship cases will be considered on an individual basis.   
 
Special leaves of absence will not exceed sixty (60) days for each three 
(3) years of continuous service. 
 
The employee will notify the Human Resources Office in writing three (3) 
months prior to the end of the approved leave of his/her intention to: 
 
 1. Return to full-time employment at the College; 
 2. Terminate employment at the College; or 
 3. Request an extension of the leave. 
 
The employee may elect to participate in the State Universities 
Retirement System during the period of the leave (subject to all provisions 
of the retirement system), and the employee may elect to continue 
insurance coverage during the period of the leave (arrangements should 
be made in the Human Resources Office).  All employee contributions 
and insurance premiums, employee and employer share, will be the 
responsibility of the employee. 
 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, when 
there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of 
Juvenile Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised December 11, 2017 
Revised  
 
Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 26



   

             Page 1 of 2 

 
05.04.15 

 
Absence Due to Inclement Weather 

 
 

To ensure consistency in reporting absenteeism during inclement 
weather periods, the following provisions will be followed. 
 
If the College is officially closed because of the weather, employees 
shall designate the date on the timecard as an “Official Closing” and 
credit the day as eight (8) hours worked. 
 
If the President authorizes a shortening of hours because of existing 
or anticipated inclement weather conditions, the employee shall 
designate the time in attendance on the timecard, followed by 
“College Closed” and credit the remaining hours of the employee’s 
shift. Employees who had taken the day off will have that day 
subtracted from their accrued benefit leave as would have occurred 
had the shortening of hours not happened. 
 
An employee who is unable to report during the hours or portions of 
days that the College is open will have the following options: 
 
1. Vacation and/or personal leave may be used in not less than one 
hour increments. 
 
2. Compensatory release time may be used. 
 
3. Employees who do not have available leave time or earned 
compensatory time will receive a corresponding deduction in pay. 
 
All absences must be recorded on the employee’s timesheet. 
 
Overtime will not be paid for any work that is completed at home 
during the period the College is closed.   
 
All Campus Police officers, because of the nature of their 
responsibilities, will report to duty at their regularly scheduled shift 
and will be paid at a rate of time-and-one-half.  

Board Book Page 27



  Board Policy               05.04.15 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, 
when there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department 
of Juvenile Justice contract(s) shall prevail.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised May 10, 1999 
Revised April 10, 2017 

Revised 

 

Board Book Page 28



05.04.16 
 
 

Sabbatical Leave for Administrators  
 
 
 
Sabbatical leave is a plan providing an opportunity for professional 
improvement with partial compensation following a designated number of 
years of consecutive service.   
 
 1. As a professional development activity, sabbatical leave is intended 

to provide an opportunity for activities of direct benefit to the College 
in the areas of advanced study and/or research. 

 
 2. An administrator who is employed full-time on an academic year or 

longer and who has served six (6) consecutive years at Lake Land 
College shall be eligible. 

 
 3. Such a leave may be awarded for one full academic year at one-

half (½) pay or for full pay for a leave of one semester.  
Administrators on sabbatical leave shall retain all accrued benefits 
during the period of sabbatical leave.  The College will continue its 
contribution to the fringe benefits plan. 

 
 4. The recipient must agree in writing to return to Lake Land College 

and render at least two (2) full years of service following completion 
of the leave.  In the event the recipient is physically or mentally able 
to serve for two (2) full years but elects not to do so, the individual 
must repay the College for any amount received during such leave. 
The recipient of the sabbatical leave shall be required to sign a 
promissory note for the amount of the sabbatical leave salary prior 
to the leave.  The note shall be declared void by the Board of 
Trustees if failure to meet its terms is the result of death or 
permanent disability as determined under the permanent disability 
provisions of the State Universities Retirement System. 

 
 
 
__________________ 
Page 1 of 2 

Board Book Page 29



    Board Policy No. 05.04.16 

 
 
 
 5. Upon his/her return to the College and within ninety (90) days, a 

complete written report on the activities, results, and outcomes of 
the sabbatical leave must be presented to the President for deposit 
in the professional collection at the College. 

 
 6. Eligible administrators desiring to be considered for sabbatical 

leave will file an application letter with the President on or before 
November 15 of the academic year prior to that in which the leave 
is desired.  This application letter must include a detailed description 
of the proposed use of the leave time. 

 
 7. Prior to March 31, the Board of Trustees shall render a decision 

concerning sabbatical leave for administrators who have applied.  
The Board of Trustees reserves the right to deny or to limit the 
number of sabbatical leaves in any one given year. 

 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, when 
there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of 
Juvenile Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised December 11, 2017 
Revised 
 
Page 2 of 2 

Board Book Page 30



05.04.18 
 
 
 

Discipline and Suspension, Demotion or Dismissal for Cause 
 
 
 

The primary purpose for the establishment and enforcement of College 
rules and regulations is to ensure the efficient operation and safe working 
conditions for all employees and students.  While on College premises 
and/or engaged in College business, employees are expected to observe 
College rules and Board policies. Employees who fail to do so are subject 
to disciplinary action up to and including demotion and dismissal. 

 

 

A first offense for certain misconduct which is of a serious nature could 
result in immediate dismissal without prior warning.  For other types of 
misconduct which are less serious, the employee’s supervisor may, at 
his/her discretion, choose to utilize progressive disciplinary action to give 
the errant employee a chance to correct his/her behavior.  A supervisor 
may skip steps or repeat steps, depending on the circumstances, but the 
basic progressive disciplinary process includes: 

 

 

1. Oral warning. 
2. Written warning, usually with counseling from the employee’s 

immediate supervisor. 

3. Suspension with or without pay. 

4. Demotion or dismissal. 
 

 

All disciplinary action resulting in suspension, demotion or dismissal must 
have the prior approval of the President of the College. 

 

 

For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, when 
there is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of Juvenile 
Justice contract(s) shall prevail. 

 

 

Suspension, demotion or dismissal shall result from any conduct or 
circumstance that is detrimental to the general welfare of the College, 
including but not limited to excessive tardiness or absence; falsification of 
any employee record; failure or refusal to perform job responsibilities; theft 
of property or services; unauthorized use of College equipment, facilities 
or supplies for personal benefit or for gainful employment outside the scope 
of College employment; willful destruction of College or personal property; 
disruption of College operations; possession and/or 

 
Page 1 of 2 

Board Book Page 31



  Board Policy  05.04.18 
 
 
 

use of an illegal substance on campus; unauthorized possession or illegal 
use of firearms on College property; gross insubordination; incompetence; 
cruelty; negligence; harassment or intimidation; or immorality.  Before any 
non-probationary employee shall be suspended, demoted or dismissed, 
that employee shall be advised in writing of the suspension, demotion or 
dismissal and of the employee’s right to request a hearing before the 
Board. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised July 14, 2003 

Revised December 11, 2017 
Revised 

 

 

Page 2 of 2 

Board Book Page 32



 
Page 1 of 3 

05.04.21 
 
 

Vacations 
 
 
 
Supervisory and Support Personnel 
 
Vacation leave for full-time twelve (12) month employees working eight 
(8) hours or more per day will be applied according to the following accrual 
schedule: 
 
    Vacation Hours Earned 
  Anniversary Accrual                Per Month 
 
  Upon hire  6.67 
  One year   7.33 
  Two years  8.00 
  Three years  8.67 
  Four years  9.33 
  Five years  10.00 
  Six years  10.67 
  Seven years  11.33 
  Eight years  12.00 
  Nine years  12.67 
  Ten years  13.33 

 
Vacations will be scheduled in advance, approved by the supervisor, and 
staggered to ensure a reasonable staffing level at all times. 
 
College-funded employees may elect to carry-over into the next fiscal 
year a maximum of eighty (80) hours of earned vacation time.  All other 
vacation time earned by each employee must be taken as time off from 
work.  Vacation time cannot be accrued from year to year beyond the 
eighty (80) hour maximum accrual described above except in extenuating 
circumstances where the College may grant the employee an increase in 
the vacation carry-over balance in order to temporarily satisfy operational 
and staffing needs in a particular department of the College. All 
extensions of the eighty (80) hour maximum carry-over balance will be 
approved in writing by the immediate supervisor and the appropriate Vice 
President.  Approved requests will be forwarded to the Director of Human 
Resources. 
 
Requests for additional vacation without pay must be submitted in writing 

Board Book Page 33



  Board Policy               05.04.21 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

and approved by the immediate supervisor and the appropriate Vice 
President.  Approved requests are to be forwarded to the Director of 
Human Resources for subsequent Board action. 
 
Administrative Personnel 
 
Personnel employed as full-time administrators will earn 160 hours of paid 
vacation for each full year of employment.  The accrual rate is 13.33 hours 
per month.  Vacation may be taken as earned at the rate of 13.33 hours 
per month. 
 
Personnel employed as full-time administrators are covered by the 
following provisions: 
 
 1. A maximum total of 240 hours may be accumulated toward carry-

over.  The specific count of accumulated carry-over hours will be 
reviewed at the end of each fiscal year, and hours in excess of 240 
will be removed from the record. 

 
 2. Administrators will schedule vacation in consultation with the 

President and/or respective Vice Presidents to avoid unnecessary 
disruption of the College. 

 
 3. Vacations will be scheduled, where possible, not to exceed two (2) 

weeks at any one period. 
 
Support, Supervisory and Administrative Personnel 
 
Full-time employees working less than a twelve-month schedule will earn 
a proportionate amount of vacation hours. 
 
Vacation leave must be taken in not less than one-hour increments unless 
there is a balance remaining of less than one hour.  All vacation must be 
approved by the immediate supervisor. 
 
If an observed holiday or declared day off occurs during the vacation 
leave, employees will not be required to use vacation for that day. 
 
New employees will be eligible to take vacation hours earned provided 
that the ninety (90) day probationary period has been satisfactorily 
completed. 

Board Book Page 34



  Board Policy               05.04.21 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Years of service for computing accrual of vacation earned will be based 
on the employee’s position hire date. 
 
If the College establishes a four-day summer work schedule, any vacation 
days taken during this period will be charged at the rate of one and one-
quarter (1¼) vacation days, or ten (10) hours for each full work day taken.  
For every hour taken, 1.25 hours will be charged. 
 
Except for employees in a totally grant-funded position, all earned 
vacation time will be paid upon termination of employment. 
 
Employees in a totally grant-funded position who attempt to carry-over 
unused vacation hours at the end of a fiscal year do so at the risk of losing 
the vacation hours and pay for those hours if the grant funding is not 
renewed and employment with the College is terminated.  An employee 
in a totally grant-funded position shall be advised to take all earned 
vacation hours prior to the termination date of a grant-funded position to 
eliminate possible forfeiture of pay for such remaining hours. 
 
For Lake Land College employees at correctional or youth centers, if there 
is a conflict, the Department of Corrections or Department of Juvenile 
Justice contract(s) shall prevail.   
 
 
 
 
 

__________________ 
Adopted November 9, 1998 
Revised July 14, 2003 
Revised January 14, 2008 
Revised April 13, 2009 
Revised October 10, 2011 
Revised 
 

Board Book Page 35



 

 

MEMO 
TO: Dr. Jonathan Bullock, President 

FROM: Bryan Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services 

CC:  

DATE: January 11, 2018 

RE: Planned Retirement Requests 
  

 

The following requests have been received from employees wishing to participate in the Lake Land 
College Planned Retirement Program: 

 
 Faculty (by seniority) Effective Date 

John Gentry December 31, 2022 
 
Supervisory (by seniority) Effective Date 
Karla Miller December 31, 2021 
 
Paraprofessional (by seniority) Effective Date 
Cathy Montgomery May 31, 2022 
 
 

All of the above have had noted in all oral and written communication to them that the Planned 
Retirement Program is not a four-year employment contract and their request must adhere to current 
Board Policy. 

 
As provided in Article II, Section H of the Faculty Contract, at the direction of the Board of Trustees, 
the number of resignations accepted in advance may be limited to fifteen percent (15%) of employees 
qualified. If this option should be invoked, resignations will be accepted on a seniority basis within 
employee group with Lake Land College.  

 
I recommend the Board of Trustees accept all of the above people into the Planned Retirement 
Program. 

Board Book Page 36



Board Book Page 37



Board Book Page 38



Board Book Page 39



Board Book Page 40



Board Book Page 41



Board Book Page 42



Board Book Page 43



Board Book Page 44



Board Book Page 45



Board Book Page 46



Board Book Page 47



Board Book Page 48



Board Book Page 49



 

 

TO: 

Members, Board of Trustees 
Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

FROM: Jean Anne Grunloh, Senior Executive to the President 

DATE: February 1, 2017 

RE: Distinguished Service Award 
  

The Distinguished Service Award is made annually to honor an individual for outstanding service to 
Lake Land College. Members of the Distinguished Service Award Selection Committee have completed 
their review of nominations submitted for consideration of this year’s award. The committee is pleased 
to recommend Dr. Robert (Bob) Luther as a posthumous recipient for this year’s award.  The selection 
committee is comprised of Dr. Josh Bullock, President; Mr. Dave Storm, Trustee; Mr. Mike Sullivan, 
Trustee; Ms. Jackie Joines, Executive Director for College Advancement; and myself.  

 Please find attached Dr. Luther’s nomination in consideration of the College’s Distinguished Service 
Award as submitted by President Bullock. This nomination highlights Dr. Luther’s dedicated service and 
lasting impact to the Lake Land College community. Most notably, Dr. Luther served as the College’s 
fourth president from 1998 until his retirement in 2006. Additionally, he served as a Lake Land College 
Board of Trustee from 2011 until his death in September 2017. During his 18-year tenure as president, 
Lake Land College emerged as a leader in technology, new programming, enrollment growth and 
innovation. His vision for growth and excellence led Lake Land to win numerous state and federal awards 
in these areas. All the while, he continued to foster a community college culture established by his 
predecessors in which students always came first. In April 2011, Lake Land honored Dr. Luther for his 
tremendous impact on the college by renaming the Student Center building the Robert K. Luther Student 
Center. 

Dr. Luther’s legacy of dedicated service to the College will be honored during the Commencement 
Ceremony to be held Friday, May 11, 2018. On behalf of the selection committee, I respectfully request 
that the Board approve the posthumous selection of Dr. Luther for the 2018 Distinguished Service Award.  

 

Attachment 

Board Book Page 50



November 28, 2017 

 

Nomination for Distinguished Service Award 

Name: Dr. Robert Luther  

 

Job: Retired President, and former Board of Trustee member, at Lake Land College.  

 

If retired, year of retirement: 2006  

 

Describe below the significant contributions benefiting Lake Land College or its affiliated 

organizations (Foundation, Departments, Advisory Committees, Student Organizations, etc.) the 

nominee has made:  
As a native of Charleston, Illinois, Dr. Luther returned home in 1988 to assume the presidency of Lake 

Land College. Under his 18 years of leadership, Lake Land College emerged as a trailblazer in online 

learning, technology usage and state-of-the-art academic programming. His vision for growth and 

academic excellence led to significant enrollment increases and numerous state and federal awards in 

innovation, teaching and technology. All the while, Dr. Luther championed the College’s student-first 

culture. Dr. Luther was instrumental in solidifying Lake Land’s fiscal footing, taking the College’s 

finances from a deficit of $1 million to a healthy $6.2 million surplus at his retirement. Enrollments 

thrived under his leadership, nearly doubling the number of full-time equivalent students during his time 

in office. And the campus underwent a substantial makeover under his tutelage. The Kluthe Center, 

Child Care Center, West Building, Ag Tech Building, Maintenance Building, and Neal Hall were all 

constructed under his guidance. His passion for excellence led to a beautification of the campus grounds 

and buildings. Dr. Luther’s impact throughout the state was profound. His leadership in key state-wide 

higher education organizations, in addition to local civic and economic groups, left its indelible mark. 

He shepherded the lobbying and passage of key legislation focusing on the equitable financing of 

community colleges and the expansion of student access to education. The recognitions and accolades 

Dr. Luther earned over his time as Lake Land’s leader were numerous, and well deserved. Dr. Luther 

continued to positively impact the College and our community as a member of the Board of Trustees. 

His historical knowledge, sage wisdom and thoughtful demeanor were tremendous assets to the College 

Board.  

 

Comments: There are few people associated with Lake Land who have left such a positive and 

permanent mark on the College and the community it serves. Dr. Luther was a humble public servant 

whose passion for Lake Land continued until the day of his passing. I can think of no one more 

deserving of the Distinguished Service Award than Dr. Robert Luther!  

 

Nominated by: Josh Bullock, President  

Address: Lake Land College  

Telephone: 234-5222  

 

Board Book Page 51



 

 

The Alumnus Achievement Award committee met on campus January 18th to 
review this year’s nominations. This honor is made annually to a Lake Land College 
graduate who has attained outstanding success and distinction in his or her field 
of endeavor. The committee is pleased to recommend Ms. Cari Rincker (One Laker 
Nation 2000) of Champaign, IL as the 2018 Alumnus Achievement Award recipient.   

Cari Rincker is a licensed attorney in Illinois, New York, New Jersey, 
Connecticut, and Washington D.C. with concentrations in food, farm and family 
law. She is also a mediator, prolific writer, and articulate speaker and is a 
nationally recognized food, farm and family attorney.  She is currently an adjunct 
professor at Vermont Law School teaching an online agriculture and 
environmental law course.  

Members of the committee are: Ms. Doris Reynolds and Mr. Mike Sullivan 
representing the Board of Trustees; Mr. Roger Osthoff and Ms. Hannah Crnkovich 
representing college alumni; Ms. Cindy Phipps and Ms. Terri Fields representing 
college faculty and Dr. Josh Bullock representing the President’s office.  

Ms. Rincker will be honored during the College’s Commencement to be held 
Friday, May 11, 2018. The committee respectfully asks the Board of Trustees to 
approve the selection of Ms. Cari Rincker as the recipient of this year’s Alumnus 
Achievement Award.  

Thank you. 

Board Book Page 52



 

 

 The Retiree Wall of Fame committee met on campus January 18th to review 
this year’s nominations. This honor is made annually to Lake Land College 
individuals that are retired faculty and staff who have made significant 
contributions to the College and/or who have made contributions through their 
profession or community at the local, state, regional, or national level that reflect 
positively on Lake Land College.  The committee is pleased to recommend Ms. 
Kathleen Doehring, Mr. Thomas Kerkhoff, and Mr. Benny Ragle as this year’s 
recipients of the Retiree Wall of Fame Award.  

Members of the committee are: Ms. Doris Reynolds and Mr. Mike Sullivan 
representing the Board of Trustees; Mr. Roger Osthoff and Ms. Hannah Crnkovich 
representing the Alumni Association Board of Directors; Mr. Tom Wright & Mr. 
Alan Fedrigon representing the Foundation Board of Directors and Dr. Josh 
Bullock representing the President’s office. 

The Retiree Wall of Fame recipients will be honored during the College’s 
Employee Recognition Event. The committee respectfully asks the Board of 
Trustees to approve the selection of Ms. Kathleen Doehring, Mr. Thomas Kerkhoff, 
and Mr. Benny Ragle as the recipients of the 2018 Retiree Wall of Fame Award.  

Thank you. 

Board Book Page 53



Board Book Page 54



Board Book Page 55



Board Book Page 56



 

 

Board Book Page 57



 

Printing
Correction Charges per line/page at 

blue line

Charges +/- 8 pages in $       

 †
  

 $   19,022.00 
$100/hr + cost to output new 

proof (s) *
+1125/-50

 $   15,425.00 $7/pg +408/-327  

 $   17,777.00 $75/pg +722/-69  

 $   16,976.74 $10/pg +349.94/-188.40  

 $   22,621.00 *** +706/-706

 

Premier Print Group

Champaign, IL

† This criteria is for budget considerations only. It was not used to determine successful low bidder.

BID DATE:   January 17, 2018 - 2:00 PM

Kingery Printing Co. **

Effingham, IL

Data Reproductions Corp.

Auburn Hills, MI

CONTRACTOR

Creasy Printing Services

Springfield, IL

KK Stephens Publishing Co.

Astoria, IL

Lake Land College Catalog Printing Bid Tab

Project No. 2018-001

            BID TABULATION

Lake Land College

5001 Lake Land Boulevard

Mattoon, Illinois 61938

Board Book Page 58



 
 
 

Memo 

 
To:  Dr. Josh Bullock, President 
 
From:  Bryan Gleckler, Vice President for Business Services 
 
Date:  January 31, 2018 
 
Re:  Surplus Equipment – Vent Hoods 

  
Due to recent renovations in the Chemistry Lab, the below items were removed from the lab 
and are no longer needed by the College.   
 

3 – Air Clean Vent Hoods – Model # AC8000S, 110v/60Hz, 900W 
 Unit A – SN#AC8000S-489 
 Unit B – SN#AC8000s-490 
 Unit C – SN#AC8000S-491 

 
As with past surplus items, we will seek the best financial route to follow in disposing of these 
items.  Those routes could include sales to individuals, auction house consignment, and/or 
wholesale purchasers. 
 
I recommend declaring these items as surplus materials and seek authorization to dispose of 
these items in a manner most beneficial to the College. 
 

Board Book Page 59



 

 

MEMO 
TO: Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

FROM: Emily Ramage, Director of Grants and Academic Operations 

DATE: February 2, 2018 

RE: Acceptance of FY18 ICCB Career and Technical Education Leadership Improvement Grant 
  

It is my pleasure to inform you that the Illinois Community College Board has selected Lake Land College to receive 
a Career and Technical Education Leadership Improvement Grant in the amount of $42,762.55 for supporting the 
startup of the Lake Land College Apprenticeship Collaboration Project. 

To cite the proposal, “Lake Land College has undertaken the ambitious goal of becoming the first downstate 
Illinois community college to act as a sponsor of USDOL Registered Apprenticeship programs. At this time, only 
one community college in Illinois operates as an apprenticeship sponsor. All other Illinois community college-
based apprenticeships utilize either the partnering business or an intermediary agency to sponsor registered 
apprenticeships. By acting as a sponsor, Lake Land College will provide an administrative and economical 
advantage to participating companies.” 

With this funding, Lake Land will oversee at least 30 new apprenticeships in both the Production Technician and 
the Plastics Manufacturing programs. The College will also begin recruiting students for registered apprenticeships 
in the field of finance. Through these apprenticeships, Lake Land College anticipates forming commensal 
relationships with a minimum of 10 business and industry partners from across the district. 

I would like to thank Myra Taylor, Workforce Solutions Project Coordinator, and Dr. Jim Hull, Vice President for 
Workforce Solutions and Community Education, for their excellent work in developing the project and preparing 
the proposal. 

I respectfully request that the Board of Trustees accept this grant award. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board Book Page 60



Board Book Page 61



Board Room
116

Waiting
103

Office
105

Office
106

Kitchen/Copy
107

Conference
108

President's Office
109

Storage
114

Executive
109A

Reception
102

Office
111

Office
110

Office
112

Vestibule
100

Mech Rm
117

Office
101

Women
119

Men
118

Coats
120

48'-0"

11'-8"

64'-0"

13'-73
4" 13'-8" 15'-21

4" 21'-6"

9'
-0

"
30

'-0
"

18
'-0

"

8'
-5

3
8"

9'
-6

5
8"

22'-6" 17'-11" 9'-11" 10'-2" 13'-2" 16'-10" 10'-81
2" 10'-91

2"

48
'-0

"

13
'-4

"
20

'-2
"

14
'-6

"

10
'-1

0"
2'

-6
"

7'
-7

"

9'
-0

"

18
'-1

1 4"
9'

-7
"

6'
-1

13
4"

9'
-0

"

5'-93
4"

6'-9"
2'-10"

7'
-5

3
4"

2'
-3

"
4'

-9
1 4"

7'
-1

"
10

'-6
"

2'
-7

"

9'-10"

9'
-0

"
2'

-7
"

IT Closet
117A

6'-0"7'-10"

2'
-0

"

3220 Executive Park Drive  n Springfield, Illinois   62703  n ph: 217.787.2844

scale:

F L O O R   P L A N
1/8" = 1'-0" G

S
C

H
E

M
E

0 2 . 0 2 . 1 8

Board Book Page 62



Board Book Page 63



Board Book Page 64



Board Book Page 65



Board Book Page 66



Board Book Page 67



Board Book Page 68



Board Book Page 69



Board Book Page 70



Board Book Page 71



Board Book Page 72



Board Book Page 73



Reimbursement Resolution.docx 

Board Book Page 74



-2- 

Board Book Page 75



 

 

Board Book Page 76



-2- 

Board Book Page 77



-3- 

Board Book Page 78



 

Board Book Page 79



 

Board Book Page 80



 

Board Book Page 81



 -2- 

Board Book Page 82



LAKE LAND COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HUMAN RESOURCES REPORT 
February 12, 2018 

  
 
The following employees are recommended for leave 
 
 Dogwiler, Gregg FMLA (Intermittent) 01/15/2018 
 Kerkhoff, Abigail FMLA 01/23/2018-01/25/2018 
 
Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are recommended for additional appointments 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    McCombe, Joshua Tech Team Volunteer 01/02/2018 
    Primary Position is College Work Study-Business 
              
Part-time 
    Abernathy, Caleb Tutor-Disability Services - Student 01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst             
    Abernathy, Caleb Tutor - Associate Community Education 01/08/2018 
   Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst              
    Carpenter, Nathan Tutor-Disability Services - Student 01/17/2018 
    Primary Position is Chemistry Lab Student Asst               
    Carpenter, Nathan Tutor-Student Community Education 01/17/2018 
    Primary Position is Chemistry Lab Student Asst               
    Carpenter, Nathan Tutor - Student Learning Assistance 01/17/2018 
    Primary Position is Chemistry Lab Student Asst               
    Fitzgerald, Andrew Adjunct Faculty Technology Division 01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is Adult Ed Adjunct Faculty                 
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor-Disability Services - Student 01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is Counseling - Clerical Worker             
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor-Student Community Education 01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is Counseling - Clerical Worker             
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor - Student Learning Assistance  01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is Counseling - Clerical Worker             
    Jobe, Bryan Tutor-Associates-Disability Services 12/18/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor – Associate Lrng Asst              
    Jobe, Bryan Tutor - Associate Community Education 12/18/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor – Associate Lrng Asst              
    Rothrock, Brett Bookstore Rush Worker 12/13/2017 
    Primary Position is College Work Study-Business              
    Walk, Aaron Adjunct Faculty Social Science  01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is Adj Faculty Social Science     
             

Board Book Page 83



Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Abernathy, Caleb Tutor-Student Carl Perkins 01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Student Lrng Asst             
    Carpenter, Nathan Tutor-Student Carl Perkins 01/17/2018 
    Primary Position is Chemistry Lab Student Asst               
    Huang, Hsin Hui Tutor-Student Carl Perkins 01/08/2018 
    Primary Position is Counseling - Clerical Worker             
    Jobe, Bryan Tutor - Associate Carl Perkins 12/18/2017 
    Primary Position is Tutor - Associate-Lrng Asst              
    Plummer, Teresa Pathways Substitute Instructor 01/19/2018 
    Primary Position is Adult Education Instructor               
    Shook, Ciara Pathways Substitute Instructor 01/16/2018 
   Primary Position is Adj Reading Instructor                   
College Work Study     
 Switzer, Christopher College Work Study - Business 01/10/2018 
   Primary Position is Pathways Teacher Aid II                  
  
End Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are ending their additional appointment 
      Position Effective Date 
Part-time 
    Due, Adam  Tutor 12/08/2017 
    Janes, Thomas  Tutor 12/08/2017 
    Satterfield, Ryan  Wind Turbine Tech 01/23/2018 
    Wolfshoefer, Emil  Wind Turbine Tech 01/23/2018 
  
New Hire-Employees 
  The following employees are recommended for hire 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    Carr, William Tech Team Volunteer 01/02/2018 
    Coe, Beth Work and Learn - Trio 01/12/2018 
    Hendrix, John Assistant Softball Coach Unpaid Volunteer 01/16/2018 
    Miller, Ashley Peer to Peer Assistant- Humanities 01/08/2018 
    Schisler, Davina Auxiliary Services Volunteer 01/17/2018 
 
Full-time 
 Blazich, Jerri Administrative Asst to College Advancement 02/15/2018 
    Dragovan, Nathaniel Marketing Specialist 02/13/2018 
 
Full-time - Grant Funded 
    McPherson, Deborah Correctional Ofc Assistant-Illinois River CC 01/16/2018 
    Spence, Latrina Correctional Cosmetology Instructor-Vienna CC 01/02/2018 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 84



Part-time 
    Abernathy, Caleb Tutor - Student Learning Assistance  01/08/2018 
    Arndt, Toni Adjunct Faculty Technology Division 01/08/2018 
    Compton, Daniel CBI Non-credit Instructor 12/14/2017 
    Friese, Erin Bookstore Rush Worker 12/20/2017 
    Helton, Danelle Admissions and Records Data Entry Asst 01/16/2018 
    Howard, Ryan Adjunct Faculty Humanities  01/08/2018 
    Huang, Hsin Hui Counseling - Clerical Worker 01/23/2018 
    Martinez, Yesica International Student Ambassador 02/02/2018 
    Padrick, Lynae Career Services Assistant 01/05/2018 
    Stephens, Carolyn Adjunct Faculty Social Science  01/08/2018 
 
Part-time - Grant Funded 
    Adams, Ashley Adjunct DOC College Funded Instructor 01/08/2018 
    Calderini, Chris Adjunct DOC College Funded Instructor 01/08/2018 
    Dial, John Adult Education Instructor 01/23/2018 
    Metzger, Teresa BNA Clinical Instructor Adult Education 01/08/2018 
    Morris, Brittany Outreach Advisor/Mentor, TRIO Destination 11/15/2017 
    Newton, Dana Adjunct DOC College Funded Instructor 01/08/2018 
    Plummer, Teresa Adult Education Instructor 01/08/2018 
    Wildman, Rebecca Adjunct DOC College Funded Instructor 01/08/2018 
 
College Work Study’s     
 Beck, Jillian College Work Study – Math/Science 01/08/2018 
    Graham, Beth-Anne College Work Study - Business 01/10/2018 
    Maxey, Macey College Work Study - Early Childhood Edu 01/08/2018 
  
Terminations/Resignations 
  The following employees are terminating employment 
      Position Effective Date 
Unpaid Volunteer 
    Ashcraft, Coartnee Work and Learn - Adult Education 01/22/2018 
    Clinton, Melinda Asst Softball Coach Unpaid 01/29/2018 
    Clinton, Wayne Asst Softball Coach Unpaid 01/29/2018 
    Morris, Cody Peer to Peer Assistant - Ag 01/25/2018 
    Porter, Amory Asst Softball Coach Unpaid 01/29/2018 
    Schnell, Pennie Auxiliary Services Volunteer 12/22/2017 
 
Full-time 
    Bradford, James Corr Commercial Cooking Instr- IYC Harrisburg 01/16/2018 
    Davis, Brian Corr Horticulture Instr- IYC Harrisburg 02/16/2018 
 
Part-time 
    Bolin, Marletta Allied Health BNA Clinical Instr 12/17/2017 
    Bucher, Michael Adj Faculty Math/Science 01/10/2018 
    Cheung, Ho Hon International Stu Ambassador 12/31/2017 

Board Book Page 85



    Darimont, Lynn Adj Reading Instructor 12/17/2017 
    Efe, Efehan International Stu Ambassador 12/31/2017 
    Freeman, Shawn Adj Doc College Funded Instr 01/03/2018 
    Gruner, Stephanie Humanities Unpaid Intern 01/11/2018 
    Hallett, Trevor Athletic Trainer 01/29/2018 
    Huang, Hsin Hui Counseling - Clerical Worker 12/31/2017 
    Kwong, Kin Yuen International Stu Ambassador 12/31/2017 
    Miller, Danelle Adj Faculty Math/Science 12/17/2017 
    Moore, Gerald Adj Faculty Math/Science 01/10/2018 
    Patel, Palak Tutor - Student Lrng Asst  12/08/2017 
    Pfafman, Tessa Adj Doc College Funded Instr 12/14/2017 
    Ray, Zoe Tutor - Student Lrng Asst  12/13/2017 
    Rohlinger, Marion Adj Faculty Math/Science 01/10/2018 
    Thompson, Bryan Adj Faculty Math/Science 01/10/2018 
    Tiffin, Andrea Allied Health LPN Sub Instructor 12/08/2018 
    Von Kamecke, Alexandria   Groundskeeper 01/24/2018 
    Walker, Amanda Counseling - Student Worker 12/21/2017 
 
College Work Study’s 
    Bannick, Brittany College Work Study-Counseling 12/21/2017 
    Haworth, Konnar College Work Study-Physical Plant 01/23/2018 
    Lye, Terry College Work Study-College Advancement 12/23/2017 
    Minard, Tristin College Work Study-Physical Plant 01/23/2018 
    Mumaw, Shayla College Work Study-Business 12/08/2017 
    Swartz, Jesse College Work Study-Business 12/08/2017 
  
  

Board Book Page 86


	TITLEPG.TLE Regular meeting
	Table of Contents Jan 2018 Board Book
	010818 Minutes
	Calendar of Events 2018
	Correspondence I Higginbotham
	HR Section 5 Policy Changes Packet Memo and 8 Policies
	HR Policy Updates for IDJJ Language
	050408.POL with edits
	050409.POL
	050413.POL with edits
	050414.POL with edits
	050415.POL with edits
	050416.POL with edits
	050418.POL with edits

	Planned Retirement Requests for 2018 Board
	FY2018 - December Financials Packet
	Distinguished Service Award MEMO 2018
	Robert Luther Nomination 2018 Distinguished Service Award
	LLC Memo to BOT - Alumnus Achievement
	LLC Memo to BOT - Retiree Wall of Fame
	Joliet and Lake Land Agreement for DOC services_Redacted
	February 2018 Catalog Bid Memo 2018-2020
	February 2018 Catalog Bid Tabulation
	Surplus Equipment - Feb
	FY18 ICCB CTE Improvement BOT Memo
	Legat Student Center Proposal Agreement and Memo
	Reimbursement Resolution
	February 12 2018 Human Resources Report
	2018-002 DWGS (2018_02-02) Plan Option G.PDF
	Sheets and Views
	2018-002 Shts - Opts-SchemeG





